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July 16, 2007 
 
 
Ms. Michelle D. Cooke 
Clinical Administrator 
Wayne Memorial Hospital 
P. O. Box 8001 
Goldsboro, NC  27533-8001 
 
RE:  State Grants from the Department of Health and Human Services— 

State Fiscal Year 2005, $80,624.00,  
State Fiscal Year 2006, $160,080.80. 

Dear Ms. Cook: 

We have completed an examination using certain limited procedures, as 
described below, related to management of state grant funds by Wayne 
Memorial Hospital.  Our objective was to identify whether or not deficiencies in 
internal control; instances of noncompliance with laws, regulations, and/or 
deficiencies in the management of financial resources existed based solely on 
the performance of these procedures.   
 
These procedures do not constitute an audit, examination, or a review as 
described in professional standards governing those types of services.  
Furthermore, our procedures were not agreed upon by you or any third party.  
Our procedures do not provide a basis for providing any level of assurance 
regarding internal control, compliance or financial management and should not 
be relied upon for that purpose.  Specifically, our procedures included the 
following: 

• Interviewing personnel; 
• Examining accounting and other grant records for the purpose of 

identifying state grant transactions; 
• Reviewing available policies and procedures; and 
• Reviewing available board minutes. 
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The results of the examination conducted on June 13, 2007 disclosed internal 
control deficiencies, instances of noncompliance and/or other matters of concern 
that are described in the attached findings and recommendations.   

This letter, including your written response to the draft findings, will be published 
on our Electronic Publication System (EPS) at www.ncauditor.net.  You and 
others who are interested in the publication should register with EPS on the web 
site.  Registered parties will receive an email notification and a link to the 
publication as soon as it is available. 

This letter is intended solely for the information and use of the management of 
the Wayne Memorial Hospital, the Governor, the General Assembly, and grantor 
agencies and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than 
these specified parties. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Leslie W. Merritt, Jr., CPA, CFP 
State Auditor 

LWMjr/jef 

Attachment 
 
CC:    Secretary Carmen Hooker Odom  
  Department of Health and Human Services 
 Ms. Laketha Miller, Controller  

Department of Health and Human Services 
Dr. Leah Devlin, Director 
 Division of Public Health, DHHS 
Mr. Bob Fitzgerald, Director 
 Division of Facility Services 
Ms. Jana Blackman, Director of Health Promotion 
 Wayne Memorial Hospital 
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Wayne Memorial Hospital  
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Overview:  Wayne Memorial Hospital (the Hospital) is a 316 bed licensed facility that services 
Goldsboro and the surrounding areas in Wayne County.  The Hosptial has grants with the 
Department of Health and Human Services: a grant through the Division of Facility Services 
was for bioterrorism planning for emergency services; and a grant through the Division of 
Public Health provided funds for the School Nurse Initiative, which provides school nurses for 
health services.  The Hospital was not monitored during the past grant period by either grantor.  

While the grant documentation provided during our examination for the grant from the Division 
of Public Health, School Nurse Initiative, appeared complete with supporting documentation, 
there were two minor findings noted below related to the Hospital financial transaction policies 
and procedures and the Facility Services Grant on Bioterrorism.   

 

1. WAYNE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL DID NOT HAVE WRITTEN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER 
GRANT FUNDS.  

The Hospital had an internal audit conducted to review internal controls and 
compliance to hospital requirements in general. The report stated internal 
controls were in place but needed to be formally documented by putting them 
in writing.  The internal audit results were provided to the Board of Directors in 
September 2006.  Minutes from that meeting stated that the controls would be 
reviewed and put in a written document.  However, the internal control policy 
and procedures manual still was not established in writing at the time of the 
examination.  The Hospital has not made this a priority.   

Recommendation 

The Hospital should immediately put in writing all policies and procedures, 
incorporating the recommendation from the internal audit relative to financial 
internal conrols.  Once the policies and procedures are developed, they 
should be presented to the Board of Directors for review and approval.  This 
should be a priority since it is a requirement for receiving any state or federal 
funds. 
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Wayne Memorial Hospital  
FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS (continued) 

 
2. WAYNE MEMORIAL HOSPITAL WAS NOT IN FULL COMPLIANCE WITH GRANT 

REQUIREMENTS FOR THE EMERGENCY SYSTEMS BIOTERRORISM GRANT.   

The Bioterrorism grant had a requirement to expand the emergency room 
services by five examination beds, going from 22 beds to 27.  The Hospital 
purchased the beds in August 2006 and requested and received 
reimbursement from the grantor for $6,015 in September 2006.  However, the 
Hospital’s plans for expansion of the emergency room changed, and the beds 
were placed in storage.  At the time of the review, the beds still had not been 
placed in service.  The grant ended in September 2006 and was not renewed.  
Thus, the Hospital did not comply with the terms of the grant. 

Recommendation 

Division of Facility Service and Hospital personnel should resolve this in an 
appropriate manner consistent with the terms of the grant that may include 
the Hospital refunding the purchase amount ($6,015) to the Division. 
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Grantee’s Response 

The response from the grantee has been reformatted to conform with the style and format of the rest of the report.  However, no data 
has been changed. 
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